
 

Page 1 

 

 
AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Southern Area Planning Committee 

Place: The Guildhall, Market Place, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP1 1JH 

Date: Thursday 23 June 2022 

Time: 3.00 pm 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Lisa Alexander, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line (01722) 434560 or email 
lisa.alexander@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Andrew Oliver (Chairman) 
Cllr Sven Hocking (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Trevor Carbin 
Cllr Brian Dalton 
Cllr Nick Errington 
Cllr George Jeans 
  

Cllr Charles McGrath 
Cllr Ian McLennan 
Cllr Nabil Najjar 
Cllr Bridget Wayman 
Cllr Rich Rogers 
 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Ernie Clark 
Cllr Kevin Daley 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE  

 

  
 

Cllr Ricky Rogers 
Cllr Graham Wright 
Cllr Robert Yuill  

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


 

Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
By submitting a statement or question for an online meeting you are consenting that you 
will be recorded presenting this, or this may be presented by an officer during the 
meeting, and will be available on the public record. The meeting may also be recorded 
by the press or members of the public.  
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.  
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.  

 
Parking 

 
To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0


 

Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

 Part I  

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 30) 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 1 
June 2022. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements through the Chair. 

5   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.  
 
Statements 
 
Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an 
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register no later than 
10 minutes before the start of the meeting. If it is on the day of the meeting 
registration should be done in person. 
 
The rules on public participation in respect of planning applications are linked to 
in the Council’s Planning Code of Good Practice. The Chairman will allow up to 
3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against an application, and up to 3 
speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each speaker will be given up to 3 
minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to the item being considered. 
 
Members of the public will have had the opportunity to make representations on 
the planning applications and to contact and lobby their local member and any 
other members of the planning committee prior to the meeting. Lobbying once 
the debate has started at the meeting is not permitted, including the circulation 
of new information, written or photographic which have not been verified by 
planning officers. 
 
Questions 
 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in particular, 



 

Page 4 

 

questions on non-determined planning applications. 
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on Thursday 16 June 2022, in order to be guaranteed of a written 
response. In order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no 
later than 5pm on Monday 20 June 2022. Please contact the officer named on 
the front of this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without 
notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 
 

6   Planning Appeals and Updates (Pages 31 - 32) 

 To receive details of completed and pending appeals and other updates as 
appropriate. 

7   Planning Applications  

 To consider and determine planning applications in the attached schedule. 

 7a   APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/00560 - 27 The Oakbournes, 
Bishopdown (Pages 33 - 40) 

 Single storey front extension 

 7b   APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/01048 - Land Adjacent to 2 Old 
Sarum Cottages, Portway, Old Sarum, SP4 6BY (Pages 41 - 60) 

 Erection of 4 terraced dwellings with parking, amenity areas and new access 
road 

8   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
taken as a matter of urgency   

 Part II  

 Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed 



 
 
 

 
 
Southern Area Planning Committee 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 1 JUNE 2022 AT THE GUILDHALL, MARKET PLACE, SALISBURY, 
WILTSHIRE, SP1 1JH. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Andrew Oliver (Chairman), Cllr Sven Hocking (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Nick Errington, Cllr George Jeans, 
Cllr Charles McGrath, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Rich Rogers and 
Cllr Kevin Daley (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 Cllr Paul Sample 
  
  

 
87 Apologies and Membership Changes 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 

 Cllr Nabil Najjar who was substituted by Cllr Kevin Daley  
 

 
The Committee also noted changes to the membership as agreed by Full 
Council on 17 May 2022: 
 
Cllr Andrew Oliver - appointed as Chairman 
Cllr Bridget Wayman - appointed as Committee Member 
Cllr Richard Britton - removed 
 
Thanks to Cllr Britton for his chairmanship over the last 12 months and his 
contributions to the Planning committee over the years. 
 
 

88 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2022 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

89 Declarations of Interest 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

In relation to item 7c - Application PL/2021/10952, Cllr Rich Rogers noted that 
he knew the applicant as he was a Wiltshire Councillor. It was noted that all of 
the Committee Members knew the Applicant, however as this did not constitute 
a disclosable pecuniary interest, the Committee would consider the application 
with an open mind. 
 
In relation to item 7c - Application PL/2021/10952, Cllr Andy Oliver noted that 
he lived in Porton and had been a part of the working group which wrote the 
Idmiston NHP, he would however consider the application with an open mind. 
 
In relation to item 7e – Application PL/2022/01547, Cllr George Jeans noted 
that he was on the Mere Town Council which had considered and objected to 
the application. He advised that he was not part of the discussion or vote in his 
role on the Town Council, so would consider the application with an open mind. 
 
 

90 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 

91 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

92 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the 
agenda. 
 
Resolved: 
To note the Appeals report. 
 

93 Planning Applications 
94 APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/09189/FUL (Mobile Home) - Lower Marshes 

Farm, Semley, 
 
Public Participation 
Quintin Bull spoke in objection to the Application 
Gina Dent spoke in objection to the application 
Patrick Drummond (Applicant) spoke in support of the Application 
Matt Williams (Agent) spoke in support of the Application 
 
The Planning Team Leader, Richard Hughes, presented the application for the 
siting of a mobile home for rural worker's accommodation, at Lower Marshes 
Farm. 
 
The application was recommended for Approval with conditions, as set out in 
the report attached to the agenda. 
 
Material considerations noted in the report included: 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 Principle of development 

 Scale, siting, design, impact on the wider landscape within the 
Cranborne Chase AONB 

 Impact on amenity 

 Highways 

 Ecology/Impact on the River Avon SAC 
 
It was noted that a mobile home had already been placed on the site. 
 
The planned business would be split between agriculture, equine and sheep 
farming, with 100 sheep in the first year, rising to 300 at year 3. In addition, 
there would be rearing and training of horses for Polo. 
 
The Agricultural consultant had agreed that there was a need on the site for a 
mobile home. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer, 
where it was clarified that the existing farm had agricultural operations on it 
which appeared to include a history of reference to an equine business. In 2016 
there was an adjustment to a legal agreement which had been put in place in 
2002.  
 
The application was for a set size of mobile home. There was already one on 
site, however it was later clarified that it was not currently lived in and was used 
by staff during the day. The application was therefore retrospective. 
 
Members of the public as detailed above, then had the opportunity to speak on 
the application, the main points included references to the poor quality of the 
land and that the land may not be suitable for farming use all year round. 
 
Other concerns regarding the possibility that the applicant may in the future, 
make an application for a permanent home on the site were raised, in particular 
to the impact on the AONB.  
 
The agent noted that the two applications (20/09189/FUL 20/09188/FUL) & 
were related.  
There was further work to carry out to the ground, as it was currently wet. There 
was an essential need to have someone on site around the clock, when rearing 
and breeding horses due to animal welfare issue. The materials would be in line 
with AONB requirements. 
 
Local Member, Cllr Bridget Wayman, who was on the Committee, spoke to 
the application noting that she had called the application in to committee 
some time ago, as the site was in the AONB, noting that national and local 
policies did not allow for houses to be easily built in the AONB. 
 
Supporting the conditions in the report Cllr Wayman queried the condition 
relating to external lighting. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Wayman then moved the motion of Approval in line with Officer 
Recommendation.  
 
This was seconded by Cllr Trevor Carbin. 
 
The Committee was invited to discuss the application, the main points 
included the 3 year consent on the application, which would require a 
further application by the applicant in 3 years time, to put forward a case 
to continue on the site.  
 
The requirements for staffing on the site were discussed as were the 
comments of the AONB and the number of windows on the mobile home 
and the associated light which would be emitted from them. 
 
After discussion, the Committee voted on the motion of Approval, for the 
reasons stated above. 
 
It was; 
 
Resolved: 
 
That application 20/09189/FUL be Approved with the following conditions: 
 
1. The rural workers mobile home hereby permitted and any ancillary 
works or structures shall be removed and the land restored to its former 
condition on or before three years of the date of this decision notice in 
accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: Permission has been granted on a temporary basis to establish 
whether there is a functional need for permanent on site residential 
accommodation on this agricultural holding. 
 
2 The occupation of the rural workers mobile home hereby permitted shall 
be limited to a person solely or mainly working in connection with the 
associated equine/agricultural business at Lower Marshes Farm, Semley, 
and to any resident dependants. 
REASON: The site is in an area where residential development for 
purposes other than the essential needs of agriculture or forestry is not 
normally permitted and this permission is only granted on the basis of an 
essential need for new residential accommodation in this location having 
been demonstrated. 
 
3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Drg. no. 18194 - 5 B Site Location Plan (revised) Date rec. 13 April 2021 
Drg. no. 18194 - 6 A Block Plan Date rec. 20 October 2020 
Drg. no. 18194 - 7 A Illustrative Plans & Elevations as Proposed Date rec. 
20 October 2020 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

Materials shall be as agreed within the email to the Council from Janet 
Montgomery dated 9th December 2020. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
4 The residential development shall not be occupied until the Building 
Regulations Optional requirement of a maximum water use of 110 litres 
per person per day has been complied with. 
 
REASON: To reduce the impact on the River Avon SAC system. 
 
5 No new external artificial lighting shall be installed at the site unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  
 
REASON: In the interests of conserving biodiversity and to minimise light 
pollution. 
 
6 Prior to the dwelling being brought into use the following biodiversity 
enhancements, as recommended in section 5.4 of the submitted 
Preliminary Ecological Assessment (David Leach Ecology Ltd. Date: June 
2021) must be provided: Woodcrete bat box. Viva pro bird box. Insect 
features. Wildlife friendly tree and shrub planting. 
 
REASON: In the interests of conserving biodiversity. 
 
Informatives: (3)  
 
Protected species 
The adults, young, eggs and nests of all species of birds are protected by 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) while they are 
breeding. Please be advised that works should not take place that will 
harm nesting birds from March to August inclusive. All British birds, their 
nests and eggs are protected under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of 
Way Act 2000 while birds are nesting, building nests and sitting on eggs. 
The applicant is advised to check any structure or vegetation capable of 
supporting breeding birds and delay removing or altering such features 
until after young birds have fledged. Damage to extensive areas that could 
contain nests/breeding birds should be undertaken outside the breeding 
season. This season is usually taken to be the period between 1st March 
and 31st August but some species are known to breed outside these 
limits. 
 
Rights of way 
No construction / demolition vehicle access may be taken along SESE26 
without prior consultation with the Rights of way Countryside Access 
Officer (CAO). Where appropriate any safety/mitigation/reinstatement 
measures must be approved by the CAO No materials, plant, temporary 
structures or excavations of any kind should be deposited / undertaken 

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

which obstruct or adversely affect the public right of way whilst 
development takes place. 
 
Lighting and materials 
Regards condition 05, details should be submitted to the LPA via a 
discharge of condition application. Details submitted should limit light 
spill in the AONB and limit harm to protected species. The colours of the 
materials and any lighting shall follow the guidance on these matters 
issued by the AONB. 
 
94a APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/09188/FUL (Agricultural Building) - 
Lower Marshes Farm, Semley 
 
Public Participation 
Quintin Bull spoke in objection to the application 
Gina Dent spoke in objection to the application 
Patrick Drummond (Applicant) spoke in support of the Application 
Matt Williams (Agent) spoke in support of the Application 
 
The Planning Team Leader, Richard Hughes, presented the application for the 
erection of a replacement multipurpose agricultural/equestrian building and 
horse walker, at Lower Marshes Farm. 
 
The application was recommended for Approval with conditions, as set out in 
the report attached to the agenda. 
 
Material considerations noted in the report included: 
 

 Principle of development 

 Scale, siting, design, impact on the wider landscape within the 
Cranborne Chase AONB 

 Impact on amenity 

 Highways 

 Ecology/Impact on the River Avon SAC 
 
There were no technical questions to the Officer.  
 
Members of the public as detailed above, then had the opportunity to speak on 
the application, the main points included reference to the change of use from 
agriculture to equestrian and the impact on the single access track, with an 
increase in use by people coming and going with or without horses and the 
subsequent impact on amenity and local highways. 
 
Reference to the need for light during the winter months on a farm in the AONB 
and the impact on the dark skies. 
 
Suggestions were made that the application equated to a new build barn and 
not a replacement to the existing, and the unsuitability of the land for the 
purpose of breeding horses due to marshy conditions. 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

The applicant and agent set out the need for the barn on the farm, to provide 
shelter and storage. The old barn had been assessed for renovation, however it 
was reported that it had been declared not viable so would need to be removed, 
due to being derelict and dangerous.  
 
Reference to policies which supported new buildings in the countryside for land 
based enterprises and justification for the size based on the type of enterprise 
was provided. 
 
There was no objection from Highways and the design complied with AONB 
preferred colour.  
 
Local Member, Cllr Bridget Wayman, who was on the Committee, spoke to 
the application noting that she was more conflicted with this application 
than the previous for the mobile home. The existing barn was an 
agricultural barn, the applicant had stated that the new barn would be 
used for animals, so would have equestrian use. The plan shown detailed 
a row of stable like structures along one side. 
 
The Officer clarified that it was a replacement barn application for 
agricultural and equestrian purposes, should the committee not be 
content that it be used for equestrian purposes then it was able to refuse 
the application.  
 
Cllr Wayman queried condition 1, the horse walker and equine works 
should be removed after 3 years and requested that ‘any ancillary equine’ 
facilities include reference to the proposed barn being removed.  
 
Cllr Wayman then moved the motion of Approval in line with officer 
recommendation, subject to the inclusion of equine as above to condition 
1.  
 
This was seconded by Cllr Rich Rogers  
 
The Committee was invited to discuss the application, the main points 
included whether discussion around the requirement for further 
consultation with the AONB before further lighting was permitted was 
required.  
 
The Officer confirmed that the consultant had looked at the statement 
provided and had agreed there was a need for the accommodation on the 
site and that the buildings appeared to be justified.  
 
The Officer clarified that Highways would only consider the application as 
presented and would not have considered the possibility of any increase 
in traffic should a polo business be started up at the site, as this was not 
part of the application.  
 

Page 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

After discussion, the Committee voted on the motion of Approval, in line 
with Officer recommendation and an amended condition 1 to include 
reference to the proposed barn. 
 
It was; 
 
Resolved: 
 
That application 20/09189/FUL be Approved with the following conditions: 
 
1 The horse walker, replacement new barn, and any ancillary equine 
works or structures shall be removed and the land restored to its former 
condition on or before three years of the date of this decision notice in 
accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. Following three years of the date of this decision 
notice the replacement barn shall be retained for agricultural purposes 
only. 
 
REASON: A temporary permission is granted in order that the local 
planning authority can review the applicant’s circumstances at the end of 
the limited period specified. 
 
2 The horse walker and the replacement barn shall only be used in 
connection with the associated equine/agricultural business at Lower 
Marshes Farm, Semley. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area. 
 
3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with thefollowing approved plans: 
Drg. no. 18194 – 1 B Site Location Plan (revised) Date rec. 13 April 2021 
Drg. no. 18194 – 2 A Block Plan Date rec. 20 October 2020 
Drg. no. 18194 – 3 A Plans & Elevations as Proposed Date rec. 20 October 
2020 
Drg. no. 18194 – 4 Proposed Horse Walker Date rec. 20 October 2020 
Materials shall be as agreed within the email to the Council from Janet 
Montgomery 
dated 9th December 2020. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
4 No new external artificial lighting shall be installed at the site unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
 
REASON: In order to reduce light spill and the impact on the AONB 
 
5 Prior to occupation of the barn the following mitigation and 
enhancement measures must be provided in accordance with 
recommendations detailed in the submitted Preliminary Ecological 

Page 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

Assessment report prepared by David Leach Ecology Ltd (July 2021) : 
Installation of a woodcrete bat box on a nearby tree. Installation of a Viva 
pro bird box on nearby tree. Instillation of insect features on nearby trees. 
Native and wildlife friendly planting. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection, mitigation and compensation 
for protected species and to provide a biodiversity enhancement, in 
accordance with Core Policy 50 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 
Communities Act 2006. 
 
Informatives: (3) 
 
Protected species 
The adults, young, eggs and nests of all species of birds are protected by 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) while they are 
breeding. Please be advised that works should not take place that will 
harm nesting birds from March to August inclusive. All British birds, their 
nests and eggs are protected under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of 
Way Act 2000 while birds are nesting, building nests and sitting on eggs. 
The applicant is advised to check any structure or vegetation capable of 
supporting breeding birds and delay removing or altering such features 
until after young birds have fledged. Damage to extensive areas that could 
contain nests/breeding birds should be undertaken outside the breeding 
season. This season is usually taken to be the period between 1st March 
and 31st August but some species are known to breed outside these 
limits. 
 
Lighting and materials 
Regards condition 04, details should be submitted to the LPA via a 
discharge of condition application. details submitted should limit light 
spill in the AONB and limit harm to protected species. The colours of the 
materials and any lighting shall follow the guidance on these matters 
issued by the AONB. 
 
Right of way 
No construction / demolition vehicle access may be taken along SESE26 
without prior consultation with the Rights of way Countryside Access 
Officer (CAO). Where appropriate any safety/mitigation/reinstatement 
measures must be approved by the CAO. 
 
No materials, plant, temporary structures or excavations of any kind 
should be deposited / undertaken which obstruct or adversely affect the 
public right of way whilst development takes place. 
 
94b APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2021/10952 - Bramble Cottage, Mount 
Pleasant, Porton 
 
Public Participation 

Page 13



 
 
 

 
 
 

Dan Roycroft (Agent) spoke in support of the Application 
Ms Maysun Butros spoke in support of the Application 
 
Late correspondence was summarised, which included a notice of support from 
Idmiston PC, a further objection from the neighbour, a revised proposal for a 
sewerage treatment plant by the applicant and comments from the Ecology 
Officer.  
 
The Officer confirmed that the additional information had not changed the 
Officer recommendation. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Julie Mitchell, presented the Full planning 
application for the erection of one dwelling with garage, at the land adjacent to 
Bramble Cottage, with garage and driveway. 
 
The application was recommended for Refusal as set out in the report attached 
to the agenda. 
 
Material considerations detailed in the report included: 
 
1. Principle of development 
2. Highway issues 
3. Character of the area 
4. Residential amenity 
5. Drainage 
6. River Avon SAC 
7. Other issues 
 
It was noted that there was no pedestrian access to the village from the site. 
Plans showing the access, location and proximity of existing dwellings, with a 
visibility splay diagram to set out the extent of visibility on the road.  
 
The site was situated outside of the development boundary and development 
went against policy. The application was recommended for refusal. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer, 
where it was clarified that until further assessment had been carried out, 
unplanned development in the location was not lawful.  
 
Members of the public as detailed above, then had the opportunity to speak on 
the application.  
 
Those in support explained that a report had been submitted which set out the 
phosphate levels would be less than the 5 cubic litres per day maximum stated 
by the councils Ecology Officer and the Parish council had voted in support of 
the application.  
 
Reference to the council’s lack of 5 year land supply was made and a 
suggestion that the development would add to the overall housing numbers for 
Wiltshire.  

Page 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The site was sustainable as the occupants would be able to commute to 
Salisbury for employment and amenities.  
 
The site was part of the applicants’ families land and would enable him to 
remain in the village in which he had resided for the last 20 years.  
 
The rural nature of the area had been considered and environmentally friendly 
features had been included in the design.  
 
Local Member, Cllr Rich Rogers, who was on the Committee, spoke to the 
application noting that he had not called it in, but that it was policy that 
any application of an elected Member would come to committee for 
consideration.  
 
Cllr Rogers then moved the motion of Approval against Officer 
recommendation.  
 
The reasons given were that despite the site being some way from the 
settlement boundary, the development was in keeping with the Bourne 
Valley settlement. 
 
There had been only one objection from a neighbour, and there was full 
support from the parish council. 
  
He considered the location to be sustainable, noting that rural settings 
generally required residents to use cars to access amenities. 
 
Historic data showed that the location was safe in terms of Highways and 
improvements had been made to the access. 
 
The single 2 bed property was modest for the plot and not 
overdevelopment and included excellent eco-friendly features.  
 
The inclusion of a treatment plant would deal with the nitrates issue.  
 
Before the Chairman called for a seconder to the motion of approval, he 
asked the Legal Officer present to clarify the legal position should the 
application be approved.  
 
The Legal Officer noted that Conservation and Habitats regulations put 
certain responsibilities on councils to ensure appropriate assessment 
was carried out prior to approving planning permission. In this instance, 
the site was outside of the Local Development area, so the council must 
be satisfied that any effect on the land would be mitigated. There had 
been reference to a treatment plant with low levels, however here there 
was a further two other existing properties close by, so there would be an 
accumulative effect. No one had yet provided that assessment and 
therefore it would be against regulations to grant permission without the 

Page 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

assessment and decision to grant permission could then be subject to 
successful challenge by way of judicial review. 
 
The Chairman asked the Planning Officer whether it would make more 
sense to defer until the Ecologist report was available. The Planning 
Officer explained that it was more than just the ecologist assessment and 
that liaison with Natural England was also required. 
 
Members discussed the merits of both deferral and refusal and came back 
to the original motion for approval which had not yet been seconded or 
discussed.  
 
Cllr Kevin Daley seconded the motion of approval. 
 
The Committee then discussed the application with comments for and 
against the application, however without the necessary assessments the 
majority of the committee noted that they would not be minded to support 
approval as it would be contrary to policy.  
 
After discussion, Cllr Rogers withdrew his motion of approval, this was 
supported by Cllr Daley.  
 
Cllr Ian McLennan then moved the motion of Refusal as per the Officer 
recommendation.  
 
This was seconded by Cllr Brian Dalton. 
 
It was; 
 
Resolved: 
 
That application PL/2021/10952 be Refused in line with Officer 
recommendation for the following reasons: 
 

1. The site is located in the open countryside outside of any defined 
settlement boundary and in a location where no public transport or 
pedestrian facilities are available or accessible. As such the proposed 
development would result in a new dwelling which would be wholly reliant 
upon the private car to access services and facilities for any residents 
and visitors to the dwelling, contrary to the settlement and 
delivery strategy for new housing and sustainability objectives embodied 
in Core Policies 1, 2, 4, 60 and 61 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, Policies 
17 and 19 of the Idmiston Parish Council Neighbourhood Plan 2015-2026 
and the aims of sustainability embodied in the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021 (with particular regards to Section 5, paragraphs 79 and 
80 and Section 9, paragraphs 
104, 105, 110 and 112) which collectively aim to provide housing in a 
sustainable manner and reduce the need to travel particularly by private 
car and encourage the use of sustainable transport alternatives. 
 

Page 16



 
 
 

 
 
 

2. The site is situated within the River Avon catchment area that is a 
European site. Advice from Natural England indicates that every 
permission that results in a net increase in foul water entering the 
catchment could result in increased nutrients entering this European site 
causing further deterioration to it. Unplanned residential development in 
the countryside is not covered by the Council’s current mitigation 
strategy and the application does not include detailed proposals to 
mitigate the impact of these increased nutrients and consequently, 
without such detailed proposals, the Council as a competent authority 
cannot conclude that there would be no adverse effect on the integrity of 
this European Site as a result of the development. The proposal would 
therefore conflict with Wiltshire Core Strategy policies CP50 (Biodiversity 
and Geodiversity) and CP69 (Protection of the River Avon SAC); and 
paragraphs 179-182 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021 

 
 
94c APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/01972 - 18 College Street, 
Salisbury 
 
Public Participation 
Andy Melleney spoke in objection to the Application 
Tony Allen (Agent) spoke in support of the Application 
 
Late correspondence was summarised at the meeting and included letters of 
support. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer Georgina Wright presented the application for 
change of use with external alterations and extensions to convert 
a Class E use to form 6 apartments. 
 
The unusual nature of the site was noted. It was a former Citizen Advice Bureau 
and was sited to the immediate back of a number of residential properties  and 
had recently received prior approval under Class MA of the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development)(England) Order 2015, for its 
conversion from offices to 6 flats.   
 
It was explained that this full application now involved a similar conversion of 
the building into 6 flats but involved alterations to the external finish; extensions 
to allow internal layout changes so that 4 of the resultant flats would be one 
bedroom flats rather than studio flats; each flat was to have their own private 
entrance; and changes were proposed to all existing fenestration, including the 
removal of all windows on the northern elevation. It was noted that parking 
provision of 2 spaces, one each for the two bed flats is to be provided. 
 
The application was recommended for Approval with conditions, as set out in 
the report attached to the agenda. 
 
Material considerations noted in the report were: 
 

 Principle & Site History 

 Heritage, Character & Design 

Page 17



 
 
 

 
 
 

 Neighbouring Amenities 

 Highway Safety 

 Ecology 

 Drainage 

 CIL/S106 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer, 
where it was clarified that future residents would not be entitled to an on-street 
parking permit as the area was already over subscribed to permits. Highways 
had restricted on street highways permits for this development, as there was 
easy access to the city centre.  
 
The Officer noted that if the application was refused, the existing permissions 
would remain valid and so the applicant could still convert the building into 6 
flats; redevelop the site with a bungalow; or it could be used again as offices.  
 
Members of the public as detailed above, then had the opportunity to speak on 
the application.  The main points touched on the effect the development would 
have on the neighbouring properties, limited light to the development, the 
requirement for major groundworks and the access to the site and the 
accessibility issues for waste collection and emergency services.  
 
In response to the comments of those in objection regarding car parking, 
drainage and construction noise, the Agent noted that the site already had 
permission to build 6 flats with 2 parking spaces.   
 
To refuse on Highways or overdevelopment grounds would fail to take into 
account the fall back prior approval.  This scheme would see improvements to 
the quality of materials and the type/size of flats that could be built under the 
prior approval consent.  
 
The two storey windows facing the back of park street would also be removed 
compared with the approved permission, thus removing overlooking windows.  
 
Local Member, Cllr Paul Sample, who was not on the Committee, spoke to 
the application noting the correspondence he had received from those 
involved.  
 
He suggested that having 6 flats on the site was similar to sardines in a 
tin, with a proposal developed to meet the needs of the developer rather 
than the neighbours. 
 
He drew attention to the objection of Salisbury City Council and stated 
that the development was overdevelopment of a narrow and hemmed in 
location which  would lack opportunity for residents to have any sort of 
view, in addition to the limited parking on site and no residential on street 
parking entitlement.  
 
No provisions had been made for deliveries, or for bin collection or 
parking.  

Page 18



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
He referred to the requirement that the application must consider the 
transport impact and with 6 flats with only 2 spaces and no on-street 
entitlement, this was not achieved. 
 
There was no adequate natural light and no disability access available, as 
the walkway was not wide enough to get past. 
 
He asked the Committee to refuse the application before them, or to 
consider deferral to relook at overlooking.  
 
The Chairman noted that the application for consideration was for 
changes to already approved flats.  
 
The Officer confirmed and noted that the two parking spaces had been 
supported by Highways due to the sustainable location and that all of the 
windows already existed, so could not be refused on overlooking.   Bin 
storage was planned in front of the 2 parking spaces and could be 
conditioned should the committee wish. 
 
Cllr Hocking moved the motion of Approval in line with Officer 
recommendation. 
 
This was seconded by Cllr Kevin Daley  
 
The Committee was invited to discuss the application, the main points 
included that the concerns raised would also apply to the already 
approved permission for 6 flats, should the current application be 
approved and that the amendments appeared to result in a superior 
scheme than was originally approved. 
 
Issues with the loss of fenestration due to the bathrooms being on the 
north eastern elevations, meant that there would be no natural ventilation 
for them. The suggestion of windows with obscured glazing was made to 
aid with light and ventilation. 
 
The hours of use would change and may impact on the neighbouring 
residents. The flats would provide much needed small scale 
accommodation with easy access to the city.  
 
The option to add an informative if approved, relating to the provision of 
electric charge points at the parking spaces and solar panels on the roofs.  
 
The application as presented probably would not be approved as a new 
building, however it would be an improvement on what was in place 
currently and what already had approval. 
 
After discussion, the Committee voted on the motion of Approval, as per 
the Officer recommendation. 

Page 19



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
It was; 
 
Resolved: 
 
That application PL/2022/01972 be Approved subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

Conditions:  
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Application Form & Certificate 
Ref: 1344/01 Rev M – Proposed Floor Plans. Received – 06.05.2022 
Ref: 1344/02 Rev C – Location and Block Plan. Received – 08.03.2022 
Ref: 1344/05 Rev D – Proposed Elevations. Received – 08.03.2022 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning 
 
3 No development shall continue above slab level on site until the exact 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external walls 
(including render colour) and roofs have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Notwithstanding the approved plans, the mono pitch roofs on the building 
shall be finished with a slate or tile material. Development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual 
amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

4 The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until the Building 
Regulations Optional requirement of maximum water use of 110 litres per 
person per day has been complied with. 
 
REASON: To avoid any adverse effects upon the integrity of the River 
Avon Special Area of Conservation 
 
5 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 

Page 20



 
 
 

 
 
 

landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include the following: 
• location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows 
on the land; 
• full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the 
course of development; 
• a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes 
and planting densities; 
• finished levels and contours; 
• means of enclosure and boundary treatment; 
• car parking layouts; 
• other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 
• all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
6 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected 
from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part 
of the development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
7 No development shall commence on site until details of secure covered 
cycle parking and bin storage have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted cycle parking 
details shall accord with dimensions, access, 
location, design and security principals laid out in Appendix 4 of 
Wiltshire’s LTP3 Cycling Strategy. These facilities shall thereafter be 
provided in accordance with the approved details and made available for 
use prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted and 
shall always be retained for use thereafter. 

Page 21



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: To ensure that satisfactory facilities for the parking of cycles 
are provided and to encourage travel by means other than the private car 
and to ensure appropriate storage facilities for bin/waste management. 
 
8 No part of the development hereby approved shall be first occupied until 
enough space for the parking of 2 vehicles; together with a vehicular 
access thereto; onsite turning provision; and 6 cycle parking spaces have 
been provided and laid out in accordance with the approved details. The 
parking spaces shall not be used other 
than for the parking of vehicles in perpetuity. The approved turning area 
shall always thereafter be retained and kept clear of obstruction. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking and 
turning within the site in the interests of highway safety; and to encourage 
travel by means other than the private car 
 

9 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Management Statement (CMS), together 
with a site plan, which shall include the following: 
 
1. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
2. loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
3. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
4. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
5. wheel washing facilities; 
6. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
7. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 
and construction works; and 
8. measures for the protection of the natural environment. 
9. hours of construction, including deliveries; 
10. pre-condition photo survey has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved CMS shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental 
effects to the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

10 Any gates shall be set back 4.5 metres from the edge of the 
carriageway, such gates to open inwards only, in perpetuity. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 

Page 22



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
11 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no windows, doors or other form of openings (other than 
those shown on the approved plans), shall be inserted in the 
north eastern or south western elevation of the development hereby 
permitted. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy 
 

12 Before flat 6 hereby approved is first occupied, full details of the 
external staircase thereto, including details of screen walls and/or fences 
at least 1.7 metres above ground/stair tread level along the north eastern 
boundary, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The agreed details shall be implemented in full prior 
to occupation of flat 6 and shall be retained and maintained in 
perpetuity. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of neighbouring amenities. 
 

13 No development shall commence on site until an ecological mitigation 
plan has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, in line with and to address the issues raised/recommendations 
made in the Ecological Appraisal Report 
(Hampshire Ecological Services, October 2020) (submitted to accompany 
planning permission 20/04337/OUT). Prior to the first occupation of the 
development hereby approved, the approved mitigation measures shall be 
implemented in full on site in 
accordance with the approved details and shall be retained and 
maintained in place in perpetuity. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of ecology 
and protected species 
 

14 No development shall commence on site until an investigation of the 
history and current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of the 
existence of contamination arising from previous uses has been carried 
out and all of the following steps have been complied with to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority: 
 
Step (i) A written report has been submitted to and approved by the Local 

Page 23



 
 
 

 
 
 

Planning Authority which shall include details of the previous uses of the 
site for at least the last 100 years and a description of the current 
condition of the site with regard to any activities that may have caused 
contamination. The report shall confirm whether or not 
it is likely that contamination may be present on the site. 
 
Step (ii) If the above report indicates that contamination may be present 
on or under the site, or if evidence of contamination is found, a more 
detailed site investigation and risk assessment has been carried out in 
accordance with DEFRA and Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11” and other 
authoritative guidance and a report detailing the site investigation and 
risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Step (iii) If the report submitted pursuant to step (i) or (ii) indicates that 
remedial works are required, full details have been submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing and thereafter 
implemented prior to the commencement of the development or in 
accordance with a timetable that has been agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority as part of the approved remediation scheme. On 
completion of any required remedial works the applicant shall provide 
written confirmation to the Local Planning Authority that the works have 
been completed in accordance with the agreed remediation strategy. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that land contamination can be dealt 
with adequately prior to the use of the site hereby 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
15 No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Bank or Public Holidays; or outside the hours of 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to 
Friday; and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 
 
REASON: In the interests of neighbouring residential amenities 
16 No development hereby approved shall commence on site until an 
asbestos management plan has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning Authority. The plan shall detail how any 
asbestos on site will be handled and disposed of in accordance with 
current regulations and guidance. The development shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, and to ensure that risks from 

Page 24



 
 
 

 
 
 

land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land 
are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried 
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors. 
 
17 No development hereby approved shall commence on site until full 
details of the proposed solar panels and the 2 electric charging points 
have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The solar panels and electric charging points shall be 
implemented in accordance with the agreed details prior to the flats being 
first occupied and shall be retained/maintained in accordance with the 
manufacturer details in perpetuity. 
 
REASON: To respond to climate change and encourage renewable and 
low carbon development 
 
Informatives:  
 
1 The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full 
and with immediate effect. Should you require further information or to 
download the CIL forms please refer to the Council's Website: 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy  
 
2 Please note that the proposed drainage strategy will be considered at 
the building regulation stage and has not been assessed as part of this 
planning application. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the comments 
made by the Council’s Drainage Officer and Wessex Water in response to 
this planning application, both of which contain details 
that will need to be resolved in order to achieve an acceptable drainage 
strategy for the site. Please note that should changes be required to the 
final approved scheme in order to achieve a satisfactory drainage strategy 
for the site, this may require the submission of a revised/amended 
scheme to be considered by the Local Planning Authority accordingly  
 
 

Page 25

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


 
 
 

 
 
 

 
94d APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/01547 - The Drying Fields, Castle 
hill Lane, Mere. 
 
Public Participation 
Jack Garner spoke in support of the Application 
Lesley Traves spoke on behalf of Mere Town Council 
 
The Planning Team Leader Richard Hughes presented the application for 
Demolition of existing garage and erection of a new 2 bedroom dwelling and 
noted the site visit which had taken place earlier that day.  
 
The application was recommended for Approval with conditions, as set out in 
the report attached to the agenda. 
 
Material considerations were: 
 

 Principle for the development, tilted balance and 5 year housing land 
supply 

 Visual impact on the character of the Conservation Area, impact on the 
streetscene.  

 Impact on neighbouring amenities  

 Highway safety  

 Biodiversity 

 The planning balance 
 
The application had generated 3 letters of objection and an objection from Mere 
Town Council. 
 
The site was described as being in the urban fabric of the settlement with the 
proposed dwelling higher in comparison to the barn building next door.  
 
The Officer noted the location of the proposed bin storage under the canopy 
area shown in the plan. 
 
There were no technical questions of the Officer.  
 
Members of the public as detailed above, then had the opportunity to speak on 
the application, the main points included the Applicants family connection to the 
local area, and the positive engagement with the conservation and planning 
officers. 
 
The proposal met the current building regulation and sustainability factor. 
Materials would be locally sourced, and the design would complement the 
existing surrounding buildings and be of a high quality.  
 
Access concerns of the town council were not supported by Highways. 
 

Page 26



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Town council representative stated an objection to the application, on 
grounds of over development of a small site. Concerns regarding the size of the 
smaller second bedroom were also raised, suggesting that space standards 
were not being adhered to. 
 
In addition, there was a lack of amenity space and bin area and a low quality 
accommodation which would require 2 parking spaces on a road which they 
considered to be busy, narrow and dangerous.  
 
Concerns regarding the Highways safety due to being on the corner, the 
logistics of entering the property at an upper level due to the split level of 
the front and rear, due to different road heights.  
 
Local Member, Cllr George Jeans, who was on the Committee, spoke to 
the application noting he usually supported smaller unit developments 
and asked the committee to judge the application on its merits. He stated 
that the site visit had highlighted the issue of the location on the corner.  
 
A residential development there would mean vehicles moving their cars in 
and out of the narrow lane, with an apex of approx. 9m high.  
  
He disagreed with the Highways assessment, noting that parking spaces 
in the evenings were full.  
 
The development would alter the open space in a conservation area as the 
cottages there were low on the streetscene, and the development was 
high.    
 
Despite there being bin storage there was no washing line, and the 
dwelling was of a poor quality. 
 
Cllr Jeans then moved the motion of Refusal, against Officer 
recommendation, on the grounds as stated above.  
 
Cllr Brian Dalton seconded the motion.  
 
The Chairman noted that on inspection and after visiting the site earlier 
that day, he felt that the application was a of a first-class design and 
believed that it did fit with the streetscene. The property next door was a 
workshop and would tower above this building. It amounted to an infill 
which would enable people that had grown up in the area to achieve 
affordable housing  
 
The Committee then voted on the motion of refusal. The motion failed. 
 
Cllr Sven Hocking then moved the motion for Approval in line with Officer 
recommendation.  
 
This was seconded by Cllr Andy Oliver. 

Page 27



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
It was; 
 
Resolved: 
 
That application PL/2022/01547 be Approved as per the Officer 
recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans listed in schedule: 
 
Site and Location Plans received 15th March 2022 
Proposed Streetscene ref 0901 Rev P02 dated 13/5/22 
Proposed Plans & Elevations ref 0010 Rev P03 dated 13/5/22 
Revised Heritage Impact Assessment and Design and Access Statement 
received 13/5/22 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. No development shall commence above slab level on the dwelling 
hereby approved until details of: 
 
i) the materials (stone and clay tile) to be used on the walls and roof of 
the development and the source of natural stone to be used 
ii) brochure details for the windows and front doors 
iii) 1:10 details for the dormer windows 
iv) rainwater goods (to be heritage style) 
v) measures for biodiversity net gain (such as bat boxes / tiles and swift / 
bird bricks) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details before the dwelling is occupied and the agreed details shall be 
maintained on site thereafter. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences above slab level in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests 
of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area and to secure biodiversity net gain for the site. 
 

Page 28



 
 
 

 
 
 

4. No external stonework shall be constructed on site (either on the 
dwelling or the external stone finish for the retaining wall on Castle 
Street), until a sample panel of stonework, not less than 1 metre square, 
has been constructed on site, inspected and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The panel shall then be left in position for 
comparison whilst the development is carried out. 
 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
sample. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
5. The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
whole of the parking area has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose 
stone or gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 
6. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the proposed development shall 
not be occupied until means/works have been implemented to avoid 
private surface water from entering the highway. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the highway is not inundated with private 
surface water. 
 
7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the access & parking spaces [2 No] have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall 
always be maintained for those purposes thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  
 
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or reenacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no window, dormer window or rooflight, other than those 
shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the roofslope(s) of the 
development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy and the 
character of the Conservation Area. 
 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
Highways: The applicant is advised of the need to submit plans, sections 
and specifications of the proposed retaining wall alterations/works for the 
approval of the Highway Authority in accordance with Section 167 of the 
Highways Act 1980. 
(For information, this relates to retaining walls which are wholly or partly 
within 4 yards (3.65metres) of a street and which is at any point of a 

Page 29



 
 
 

 
 
 

greater height than 4'6"(1.40 metres) above the level of the ground at the 
boundary of the street nearest that point.) 
 
The application involves an extension to the existing/creation of a new 
vehicle access/dropped kerb. The consent hereby granted shall not be 
construed as authority to carry out works on the highway. The applicant is 
advised that a licence will be required from Wiltshire’s Highway Authority 
before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, 
verge or other land forming part of the highway. Please 
contact our Vehicle Crossing Team on vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk  
and/or 01225 713352 or visit their website at http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-
streets  to make an application. 
 
CIL: The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 
represents chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council’s CIL Charging 
Schedule. A separate Community Infrastructure Levy Liability Notice will 
be issued by the Local Planning Authority. Should you require further 
information with regards to CIL please refer to the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrast
ructurelevy  
 
Protected Species: The applicant should note that under the terms of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the Habitats Regulations (2010) it 
is an offence to disturb or harm any protected species, or to damage or 
disturb their habitat or resting place. Please note that this consent does 
not override the statutory protection afforded to any such species. In the 
event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species you 
should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England’s website for further 
information on protected species. 
 
 

95 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.04 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Alexander of Democratic 
Services, direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.alexander@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line ((01225) 713114 or email 

communications@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 30

mailto:vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
Wiltshire Council   

Southern Area Planning Committee 
23rd June 2022 

 
Planning Appeals Received between 20/05/2022 and 10/06/2022 

Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or 
COMM 

Appeal Type Officer 
Recommend 

Appeal Start 
Date 

Overturn at 
Cttee 

PL/2022/02218 Land at Porton Road 
adjacent to Lovibond 
House, Sunrise Way, 
Amesbury, SP4 7GR 

Amesbury New single illuminated 48-sheet 
digital advertisement display 

DEL Advertisement 
Appeal 

Refuse 01/06/2022 No 

 
Planning Appeals Decided between 20/05/2022 and 10/06/2022 
Application 
No 

Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or 
COMM 

Appeal Type Officer 
Recommend 

Appeal 
Decision 

Decision 
Date 

Costs 
Awarded? 

17/00271/ENF Rambling Rose 
Southampton Road 
Clarendon, Salisbury 
Wiltshire, SP5 3DG 

Clarendon Park Unauthorised residential 
occupation of storage building 

DEL Inquiry - Quashed 27/02/2022 None 

PL/2021/07511 Windmill Ridge,  
Down Barn Road, 
Winterbourne Gunner 
Salisbury, SP4 6JN 

Winterbourne Variation of condition 15 (removal 
of permitted development rights) 
on application 17/06469/FUL 
(Construction of one detached 
dwelling with disabled annexe, 
including work space for lifelong 
living and outside space for 
supported horticultural activities) 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed 26/05/2022 None 

 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT OUTLINE FOR AREA PLANNING COMMITTEES Report No. 

Date of Meeting 23/06/2022     

Application Number PL/2022/00560 

Type of application Full planning permission 

Site Address 27 The Oakbournes, Bishopdown 

Proposal Single storey front extension 

Recommendation Approve subject to conditions 

Applicant Mrs K Stokes 

Town/Parish Council Laverstock and Ford Parish Council 

Electoral Division Laverstock 

Case Officer  Tom Collins 

  
Reason for the application being considered by Committee  
  
The application has been called in by Cllr Ian Mclennan citing local concerns regarding the 
impact on the street scene 
 
1.Purposes of Report  

 
The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of the 
development plan and other material considerations, and to consider the recommendation that 
the application be APPROVED. 
 
2.Site Description 
 
The existing dwelling is located on the modern housing estate of Bishopdown. It is a detached 
dwelling, located in a corner location, within a cul-de-sac. The dwelling is stepped back 
compared to existing dwellings adjacent to the south, and perpendicular to those to the north. 
 
3.Planning History 
 
S/2002/1630 – Two storey rear extension. Approved. 
 

4. The Proposal 

 

This application proposes to extend the existing dwelling with a single storey pitched roof 
extension to the front of the property. 
 

5.  Planning Policies 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 2021 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7a



Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS) 
 
Core Policy 57 
 
6.Consultation Responses 
 
Laverstock Parish Council (original plan) - The response of Laverstock and Ford Parish 
Council is 'OBJECT' for the following reasons:- 
 
1. This large extension to the front of number 27 constitutes a significant overdevelopment of 
the plot. 
2. It will spoil the character and general appearance of this attractive little cul-de-sac of 
houses. 
 
 
Neighbour/third parties:  No response received 
 
 

7.  Planning Considerations: 

 

 Principle of development 

 Scale and design, impact to character and appearance of area 

 Neighbour amenity 

  

 

8.  ASSESSMENT 

 

8.1 Principle 
 
This application proposes to extend the existing dwelling with a single storey pitched roof 
extension to the front of the property. There is no objection to the principle of the 
development in an existing housing area, subject to consideration of all material planning 
issues and site-specific constraints. 
 
 
8.2 Size, design, and impact on the character of the area 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 34



  
 
 
The existing housing area contains a mixture of architectural styles and materials, and some 
have projecting front extensions, albeit of shorter depth than proposed here. 
 
This site is somewhat unusual in that the existing property is set back a significant distance 
from the road, relative to those properties adjacent to it, which are set closer to the road way. 
The property has a long front garden area. The blank two storey gable end of the dwelling 
adjacent the site therefore runs along part of the boundary of the front garden, screening the 
application site partially from view from much of the surrounding dwellings. 
 
The proposed front extension has been amended following comments from Laverstock 
Parish Council. The extension has been made 500mm shorter at 3.5m.  
 
Whilst still a rather elongated projection compared to others in the street scene, when 
viewed from the front, the extension is likely to have only a limited visual impact, as from the 
front, its elongation will not be readily apparent and it would resemble other smaller front 
extension. From the side, it is only viewed by a few adjacent dwellings, and against the 
gable end of the adjacent house.  
 
Consequently, it is concluded that the proposed building would be of an appropriate scale 
and design which would complement the existing building and its setting. The surrounding 
area would therefore remain unaffected. 
 
8.3 Neighbour amenity 
 
There have been no objections from third parties, other than the Parish Council. Whilst the 
concerns are understandable given the rather unusual elongated nature of the scheme, any 
refusal of the proposal would need to be based on the harm caused. In terms of neighbour 
amenity, the extension, whilst visible, would not have any significant impacts in terms of 
overshadowing, dominance, loss of privacy, particularly due to its location set against the 
much larger blank gable end wall of the adjacent dwelling. 
 

Page 35



Thus in officers opinion, there will be no impact to amenity to warrant refusal. 
 
 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
 
The proposed building would enlarge the accommodation available to this dwelling, and 
would be rather elongated in its length compared to other front extensions in this area.  
However, given the varied nature of this area in terms of its eclectic character and varied 
building line, the new extension would not detract from the character of the area. Similarly, 
the building would be unlikely to impact on the amenities of the adjacent dwellings. 
 
The proposals accord with the objectives of core policy 57 in the WCS, and the aims of the 
NPPF. It is therefore recommended that planning permission should be granted. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE with conditions 
 
1.The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2.The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
 
Site Location plan – no reference 
 
Block Plan – no reference 
 
Existing and proposed plans and elevations ref 21/1716/01 Rev B 
 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
3.Materials shall be as shown on the approved plans and application form.  
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

 

 
 

  

Page 36



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT  FOR SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE Report No. 

Date of Meeting 23rd June 2022 

Application Number PL/2022/01048 

Site Address Land adjacent to 2 Old Sarum Cottages 

Portway 

Old Sarum 

Salisbury 

SP4 6BY 

Proposal Erection of 4 terraced dwellings with parking, amenity areas and 

new access road 

Applicant KHT Developments Ltd 

Town/Parish Council LAVERSTOCK AND FORD 

Electoral Division  Old Sarum and Lower Bourne Valley – Cllr Andrew Oliver 

Type of application Full Planning 

Case Officer  Lynda King 

 
Reason for the application being considered by Committee 
 
The application has been called to Committee by the Local Member for the following 

reasons:-  Design – bulk, height and general appearance, environmental or highway 
impact, and unacceptable noise from retained bus operations. 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of 
the development plan and other material considerations and to consider the 
recommendation that the application be approved. 
 

2. Report Summary 
 

The main issues which are considered to be material in the determination of this 
application are listed below: 

 Principle 

 Highway safety 

 Drainage 

 Layout  

 Impact on residential amenities of adjacent commercial operation 
 

The application generated an Objection from Laverstock and Ford Parish Council. 
 
3. Site Description 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7b



The site lies immediately adjacent to the Old Sarum settlement boundary, but, as can be 

seen from the photo below, is surrounded by development. It has the extensive Beehive 

Park and Ride facility to the west and a mix of development types to the east. Both the 

Longhedge and Old Sarum developments now have facilities and services associated 

with them.   

The site is a brownfield/previously developed land site with permanent buildings and 

substantial areas of hardstanding where large coaches are parked when not in use. The 

site is also partially residential as there are two existing dwellings on the site, as well as 

the office of the Coach and travel company. 

 

Application site marked as ‘Assisi travel’  

In light of the above situation it is considered that this brownfield site is suitable for re-

development in principle and can contribute towards the Council’s current shortfall in a 5 

year housing land supply.  

 
 
4. Relevant Planning History 
 

S/2005/0211 - Land at Old Sarum, Salisbury. 
Mixed use development comprising new residential, employment uses and community 
facilities and associated infrastructure. 
 
(Note the location plan for this application includes 1&2 Old Sarum cottages but the 
Masterplan redline excludes them.)  
 
Various application on the application site relating to the existing commercial use. 
  
20/09977/FUL – Construction of 6 Dwellings with parking and private amenity areas 
following demolition of Old Sarum Cottage – A/C 20/04/2021 
 

 
 

 

Page 42



 
 
5. The Proposal 
 

This application proposes the construction of 4 dwellings, parking, access and amenity 
space on land adjacent to the existing dwellings and office at Old Sarum Cottages. The 
proposal will retain the existing residential properties and the office associated with the 
Assisi Travel operator. Some coaches associated with this operation will continue to be 
parked on land adjacent to the office and existing dwellings. 

 
6. Local and National Planning Policy 
  

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 NPPF - Paragraph 11 sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

Development plan proposals that accord with the development plan should be approved 
without delay. Where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of-
date then permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of approval would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the NPPF or 
specific policies in the NPPF indicate development should be restricted. 
Relevant NPPF sections include: 
Section 8 – promoting healthy and safe communities 
Section 11- making effective use of land 
Section 12- achieving well-designed places 
Section 14 – Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
 
Wiltshire Core Strategy 
 
CP1 (Settlement Strategy) 
CP2 (Delivery Strategy)  
CP3 (Infrastructure Requirements)  
CP20 (Salisbury Community Area)  
CP23 (Southern Wiltshire Community Area)  
CP25 (Old Sarum Airfield)  
CP35 (Existing Employment Land)  
CP50 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity)  
CP51 (Landscape)  
CP57 (Ensuring High Quality Design & Space Shaping)  
CP58 (Ensuring the Conservation of the Historic Environment)  
CP60 (Sustainable Transport)  
CP61 (Transport & Development)  
CP62 (Development Impacts on the Transport Network)  
CP69 (River Avon SAC) 

 

 

7. Summary of consultation responses 

 

Laverstock and Ford Parish Council – To amended plans - The response of Laverstock 

and Ford Parish Council remains 'OBJECT' for the following reasons:- 

1. Design - the amendments do not sufficiently address the poor design and layout of 

the site, including poor access for vehicles. 

Page 43



2. Safety and noise - from the adjacent depot, the access immediately adjacent to The 

Portway with limited areas for vehicles to pass, and insufficient space for pedestrians to 

cross safely to the pavement on the opposite side of The Portway. 

3. Flooding - local knowledge suggests that this section of The Portway regularly floods 

with run off from adjacent fields. 

 

Original comments –  At it's meeting on 21st March 2022, Laverstock and Ford Parish 

Council resolved to OBJECT to this application for the following reasons:- 

Noise - this application proposes to retain the existing commercial use on part of the 

site. The proposed new properties would be immediately adjacent to this operation, 

placing any residents at risk of unacceptable noise levels from the commercial 

operations. Concerns were also raised about the safety of children living in the new 

properties, with numerous bus movements daily in close proximity. 

Design - the proposal to construct four properties on a small site has resulted in a poor 

layout and design. There is insufficient space to allow access for vehicles such as 

refuse lorries, and no space for vehicles to pass on the site, except in the entrance way 

immediately adjacent to The Portway. 

 

After the submission of amended plans on the previous application at this site, 

20/09977/FUL for the demolition of the existing cottages and erection of six new 

properties, the Parish Council did not object. However this new application, which 

retains the existing cottages and attempts to fit in another four properties, does not meet 

the same levels of design and amenties for the new residents. 

 

 

WC Archaeology – No objection. The site lies in an area of high archaeological potential 

and therefore a condition requiring that an archaeological investigation is undertaken 

prior to the commencement of development on the site is recommended. 

 

WC Conservation – No objection. The scheme would introduce a row of houses to the 

right of the existing pair of cottages, set further back at a right-angle and down from the 

road. This would have a recessive effect and make them all but invisible from the hillfort. 

The impact on the streetscene and the airfield CA would be negligible - there would be 

an increase in built form but it reuses a site without impact on the orchard to the east 

and without any visual assimilation with the housing estates further to the northeast. I 

am satisfied that the setting and significance of the heritage assets would be preserved 

in accordance with the NPPF and CP58. 

 

WC Highways – No objection subject to conditions 

 

WC Drainage – Initial concerns but no objection to final scheme as it can be dealt with 

under Building Regulations approval process. 

 

8. Publicity 

 

The application was publicised by way of a Site Notice and letters sent to neighbouring 

properties. Only one letter of representation was received, from Salisbury and Wilton 

Swift Group requesting that swift boxes be erected on the new dwellings. 

Page 44



 

9. Planning Considerations 

 

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and section 38(6) of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require that the determination of planning 

applications must be made in accordance with the Development Plan, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

9.1 Principle of development and retention of employment 

 

Planning permission was granted in April 2021 (ref.no. 20/09977/FUL) for the re-

development of the site with the construction of 6 dwellings, of a contemporary design, 

that would have fronted the Portway, as shown below: 

 

 

 

 
 

This scheme would have removed the commercial travel agency and coach parking 

from the site in it’s entirety. 

 

The current application seeks to retain the existing buildings on the site, and to 

construct 4 two-storey dwellings of a much smaller scale to those previously 

approved effectively at right angles to the highway, as shown on the plan below. 

 

The existing dwellings are shown in grey on the plan below immediately adjacent to 

the proposed dwellings, with a small office at ground floor within the main building 

which is operated by Assisi Travel. This is a coach company involved in providing 

school transport as well as coach travel. Currently 12 of the company’s coaches are 

parked on the application site when not in use, and the applicant’s agents have 

Page 45



stated that the current proposal is to reduce the number of coaches operated by the 

business to 6 due to the impacts of covid on the company. 

 

The existing dwellings will create a buffer between the area of coach 

parking/commercial element and the new residential development (the agent 

comments that the coaches are just stored/parked there and are on the road the 

majority of the time).  

 

As has been set out in Section 1 above, this site is just outside the settlement 

boundary of Old Sarum, but is a brownfield/previously developed land site and is 

surrounded by development on three sides and does not constitute inappropriate 

development in the open countryside. It also benefits from consent for 6 dwellings. 

The construction of additional dwellings on the site will help address (in a small way) 

the shortfall in the Council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply, and will help to ensure 

the continuing employment opportunities of the company that exists on site, which 

has been affected by the covid pandemic. The development therefore meets the 

objectives of the Core Strategy to provide suitable housing and supporting the local 

economy. 

 

 

 
Revised site plan following amendments required by Highway Authority 

 

Page 46



9.2 Highway Safety 

 

The application proposes the construction of a separate access to the east of the 

mixed commercial and residential use to serve the proposed dwellings and the 

existing cottages. It is proposed that the new access will allow 2 cars to pass at the 

junction with the Portway before narrowing to allow additional landscaping features 

to be included in the site and to reduce the amount of hard surfacing proposed. 

 

The Highways Officers were initially concerned that the parking and manoeuvring 

space within the site was not sufficient to meet the Council’s standards, but did not 

object to the principle of the development and the creation of a separate access onto 

the Portway. Amended plans were submitted to re-orientate the car parking spaces 

and to ensure that there is sufficient manoeuvring space within the application site to 

ensure that vehicles can enter and leave the site in forward gear, and the Highways 

Officer has recommended that consent can be granted subject to conditions. This 

amended plan has overcome the concerns of the Parish Council about limited space 

for vehicles to pass. 

 

The Highway Authority also require a dropped kerb to be provided on the footway 

opposite to the site, which was also a requirement of the previous consent, which 

addresses one of the points raised by the Parish Council. 

  

It is accepted that the refuse vehicles will collect bins from the highway, as is the 

situation on the majority of residential development. 

 

9.3 Drainage 

 

Concerns were initially expressed by the Council’s drainage Engineers in respect of 
the surface water run off from the site, which was echoed by the Parish Council. 
This matter has been addressed via additional reports submitted by the agent and 
now agreed, subject to conditions, by the Engineers. The pre-commencement 
conditions have been agreed with the agent, and are the same that were imposed 
on the earlier planning permission for the 6 dwellings.  
 
9.4 Design and Layout and impact on heritage assets 

 

The proposal is for the retention of the existing dwellings on the site, along with 

some outbuildings and hardstanding, and to allow for the creation of a new 

residential development. The proposed development will comprise 4no. dwellings 

with associated parking, and a new access road into the site. Due to the sloping 

nature of the site, the dwellings are set lower than Portway, and slightly step down to 

the east. 

 

The proposed dwellings are located along the East of the site and are made up of 

4no. terraced dwellings Each dwelling comprises of a living space, kitchen/dining 

and toilet on the ground floor, 3no. bedrooms and a bathroom on the first floor, with 

garden areas to the rear. 

 

Page 47



A new access road along the East boundary of the site enables vehicular access to 

the new dwellings along with the dedicated parking area for the existing cottages. 

2no. existing parking spaces are retained at the rear of the site and space provided 

for 7no. new parking spaces with turning space. Each dwelling is allocated 2no. 

parking spaces. There is a bin store to the front of the site which has been softened 

with new landscaping. Electric Vehicle charging points are also proposed for each 

dwelling. 

 

The design of the proposed dwellings is quite simple, with pitched slate roofs, 

vertical timber cladding to the first floor and brick elevations to the ground floor, as is 

seen below: 

 

 

 
East elevation 

 

Care has been taken to minimise the degree of overlooking of the existing dwellings, 

for example Plot 1 only has a small  bedroom window at first floor to the rear,  along 

with one serving a bathroom. There will be limited overlooking from the existing 

properties as the new dwellings are set to the rear of the two storey elements of 

these dwellings, with the first floor windows on the site elevation overlooking the car 

parking area of the new scheme. 

 

Each dwelling has also been provided with a bin store and bike store, which are then 

accessible to the bin store at the front of the site on collection days. The garden 

areas are comparable to those of the dwellings of the nearby Ramsbury Drive 

further to the east and are considered adequate. 

 

It is accepted that the design of the dwellings is different to that of the existing 

buildings on the site, but these are not of any architectural merit, as can be seen in 

the photograph below. Indeed, the area now contains a broad mixture of dwelling 

types and various materials and styles. 

Page 48



 
 

The dwellings will not be readily visible when viewed from the site frontage as it is 

set back behind the frontage of the building at a slightly lower level, with parking and 

landscaping to the frontage. There are a substantial number of trees in the land 

adjacent to the site on the eastern boundary which will screen the properties when 

viewed from the site to the east, and with the change in levels the properties will not 

be prominent in the street scene. At present there are coaches parked on the site in 

the evenings, which with their pale colour are more prominent than the proposed 

dwellings are likely to be. The site will be seen against the backdrop of trees on the 

Park and Ride site, as well as the open area of land to the east and north. 

 

The site lies on a regular bus route into the city, and it is well related to facilities at 

Old Sarum such as the supermarket and local primary school, all of which are within 

walking distance of the site. 

 

The site lies in an Archaeologically Sensitive area and close to the Old Sarum 
Airfield Conservation Area and  therefore both the Council’s Archaeologist and 
Conservation Officer were notified of the proposal. The Council’s Archaeologist 
requires a condition to be imposed on any consent to enable an assessment of the 
site’s archaeological potential to be carried out prior to development. This pre-
commencement condition has been agreed with the applicant’s agent. The site also 
lies to the north of the Old Sarum Airfield Conservation Area, but it is considered that 
the development will not have an adverse impact on the Conservation Area, nor will 
it be visible from the Ancient Monument at Old Sarum. 
 

 

9.5 Impact on residential amenity of adjacent commercial operation. 

 

Concerns have been expressed by the Parish Council about the impact of the 

existing coach operation on the amenities of the residents of the proposed dwellings, 

and the safety of any children on the site. The agent commented as follows: 

 

The proposed dwellings will be located on the right-hand side of the existing 

dwellings, with these existing dwellings creating a buffer between the Commercial 

Page 49



element and the new residential development, the reduction in coaches from 12 to 6 

will mean the vehicular movements will be far less than currently exists, in reality the 

coaches are just stored/parked here and are on the road for a majority of the time. 

There is no reason for children of the occupants either existing or new to have 

contact in any form with the commercial element, both will now be served by a 

separate vehicular/pedestrian access. This new access is 5m wide for the first 5m to 

allow for passing traffic, it then narrows but only serves plot 4. 

 

It should be noted that there are two existing residential properties on the site at the 

moment which sit within the coach parking area as it currently exists, and the 

proposal to construct dwellings on about half of the site will improve the situation for 

these residents as well as they will now not have coaches parked on the eastern 

side of the site, and they will now have dedicated car parking spaces located free of 

the coach parking area with a landscaped access to the front doors. 

 

There is no servicing or other work to the coaches carried out on the site at the 

present, and that situation will remain. The coaches will only be parked on the 

western side of the site on existing hardstandings when not in use. The main use of 

the site during working hours is as an office which is contained within the existing 

buildings on the site. The photographs below show the situation as it is at present: 

 
 

It is therefore considered that the impact on the residential amenities of the 

occupants of the proposed dwellings will be very limited and not sufficient to refuse 

planning permission for the development. The access to the new dwellings will be 

separate to that of the retained coach business and therefore will present no greater 

hazard to residents of the site than any other residential development adjacent to a 

commercial use. 

 

9.6 Ecology  

 

The scheme is accompanied by an ecological appraisal and the Council’s ecologists 
raise no objections to the earlier proposed re-development subject to conditions, 
which the applicant’s agent has agreed to. 

  

Page 50



This development falls within the catchment of the River Avon SAC and has 
potential to cause adverse effects alone or in combination with other developments 
through discharge of phosphorus in wastewater. The Council has agreed through a 
Memorandum of Understanding with Natural England and others that measures will 
be put in place to ensure all developments permitted between March 2018 and 
March 2026 are phosphorus neutral in perpetuity. To this end it is currently 
implementing a phosphorous mitigation strategy to offset all “planned” residential 
development, both sewered and non sewered, permitted during this period. The 
strategy also covers non-residential development with the following exceptions: 
 

 Development which generates wastewater as part of its commercial processes other 
than those associated directly with employees (e.g. vehicle wash, agricultural 
buildings for livestock, fish farms, laundries etc) 

 Development which provides overnight accommodation for people whose main 
address is outside the catchment (e.g. tourist, business or student accommodation, 
etc) 

 
 

In this instance, as the site is considered to be “brownfield” development, located in a 
sustainable location close to services and facilities, it is considered that the proposal 
can be considered as “planned” development, that falls within the strategy. 
 
Following the cabinets resolution on 5th January 2021, which secured a funding 

mechanism and strategic approach to mitigation, the Council has favourably 

concluded a generic appropriate assessment under the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019. This was endorsed by Natural 

England on 7 January 2021. As this application falls within the scope of the mitigation 

strategy and generic appropriate assessment, it is concluded it will not lead to 

adverse impacts alone and in-combination with other plans and projects on the River 

Avon SAC. 

 

 

10.Conclusion (The Planning Balance) 

 

The site is in a mixed use at the present, which includes two dwellings, and office 
and a significant area of hardstanding used for the parking of coaches. The 
application site is located adjacent to the Old Sarum settlement boundary, and will 
result in the re-development of a brownfield site which is considered to be located in 
a sustainable location surrounded by existing development and services, and does 
not represent an incursion in the open countryside or a greenfield site. It is 
considered that the scheme will improve the appearance of the area and will provide 
additional housing units to assist the Council to meet its 5 Year Housing Land 
Supply targets, as well as supporting the retention of a local business that has been 
affected by the impacts of the covid pandemic. 
 
The overall design of scheme is considered to be acceptable, and it would have 
limited amenity and landscape impacts in this location. There are no significant 
highways related or other issues that cannot be mitigated by conditions. 
 
As a result, the scheme is considered to be in accordance with national and local 
planning policies, in particular CP1,CP2, CP35, CP50, CP51,CP52,CP57,CP58, 
CP61, & CP69. 

Page 51



 

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE, subject to the following conditions:- 
 
 

1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 

 
 

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans:  
 
Proposed location and block plan – Drw. No. P20-033 02-02-003 Dated Jan 2022, 
received on 9th Feb 2022 
Proposed Site Plan – Drw. No P21-090 02-02-004A dated Jan 2022, received on 
24th March 2022 
Proposed Elevations Plot 1 – Drw. No. P21-090 02-02-001 Dated Jan 2022, 
received on 9th Feb 2022 
Proposed Elevations Plots 2 – 4 – Drw. No. P21-090 02-05-002 Dated Jan 2022, 
received on 9th Feb 2022 
Proposed Bin/Bike stores – Drw. No. P21-090 02-05-003 Dated Jan 2022, received 
on 9th Feb 2022 
Proposed Floor Plans Plot 1 – Drw. No. P21-090 02-03-001 Dated Jan 2022, 
received on 9th Feb 2022 
Proposed Floor Plans Plots 2 and 3 – Drw. No. P21-090 02-03-002 Dated Jan 
2022, received on 9th Feb 2022 
Proposed Floor Plans Plot 4 – Drw. No. P21-090 02-03-003 Dated Jan 2022, 
received on 9th Feb 2022 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning 
 

3) No development shall commence above slab level on site until the exact 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter 
to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required 
to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in 
order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the 
interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

4) The dwellings hereby approved shall not be occupied until the Building Regulations 
Optional requirement of maximum water use of 110 litres per person per day has 
been complied with. 

Reason: To avoid any adverse effects upon the integrity of the River Avon Special 
Area of Conservation (SAC). 
 

Page 52



5) No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, the details of which shall include :- 

 

 a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities; 

 finished levels and contours; 

 means of enclosure; 

 car park layouts; 

 other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

 all hard and soft surfacing materials; 

 minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, refuse and other 
storage units, signs, lighting etc); 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and 
the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
 

6) All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first occupation 
of the building(s) or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner; 
All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, 
within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar 
size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 
accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development 
and the protection of existing important landscape features. 

 
 

7) The development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Drainage 
Documents 

 
4288-SARU-13-001-BR-01.001-Infiltration Rate 
4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX-P02 Storm Simulations 
4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX- M2-C-0205-P01-S2_Exceedance Routing 
4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX- M2-C-0300-P01-S2_Surface Finishes 
4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX- M2-C-0100-P01-S2_Levels Design 
4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX- M2-C-0200-P02-S2_Drainage Design 

 
and the Surface Water Drainage Strategy contained within it. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained without 
increasing flood risk to others. 
 

Page 53



 
 

8) No development shall commence within the area indicated within the red line of 
the application site (2021/01048) until: 

 
a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 

include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing 
and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority; and 

 
b) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out 

in accordance with the approved details. 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to enable the recording of any matters of archaeological interest. 

 
 

9) Prior to the commencement of any works, including ground preparation or vegetation 
removal, the details of the proposed  biodiversity enhancement scheme, including the 
number, design and locations of bat roosts and opportunities for birds, hedgehogs 
and insects and hedgerow planting specification in accordance with the ‘Ecology 
Report’ KP Ecology, 1st June 2020, shall be submitted to the local authority for 
approval. The scheme shall be informed by the findings of an updated Extended 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey (dating no more than 24 months earlier than the scheme). 

 
The approved details shall be implemented before occupation of the final works. This 
condition will be discharged once photographic evidence of installed features has 
been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. 

 
REASON: To provide mitigation /enhancement for biodiversity. 
 

10) Prior to first occupation at section of footway shall be provided across the site 
frontage (as per drawing P21-090 02-02-004), together with a dropped kerb opposite, 
in accordance with details which shall first be submitted to and approved by the LPA. 
 
REASON: In the interests of sustainable travel. 
 

11) No development shall commence on site until visibility splays have been provided 
between the edge of the carriageway and a line extending from a point 2.4 metres 
back from the edge of the carriageway, measured along the centre line of the access, 
to the points on the edge of the carriageway 115 metres to the right (west) and 125 
metres to the left (east) from the centre of the access in accordance with the 
approved plans. Such splays shall thereafter be permanently maintained free from 
obstruction to vision above a height of 900mm above the level of the adjacent 
carriageway. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety 
 

12) Notwithstanding the submitted details, the proposed development shall not be 
occupied until means/works have been implemented to avoid private water from 
entering the highway. 

 

Page 54



Reason: To ensure that the highway is not inundated with private water. 
 

13) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the access, 
turning area and parking spaces (including the parking spaces for Old Sarum 
Cottages) have been completed in accordance with the details shown on the 
approved plans. The areas shall always be maintained for those purposes thereafter 
and maintained free from the storage of materials. 

 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 

14) The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the first 5m of the 
access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has been consolidated and 
surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be maintained as such 
thereafter. 

 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 

15) Prior to the occupation of the first dwelling, details of the charging points 
infrastructure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. No individual dwelling shall be occupied until the 
points have been installed in accordance with the approved details. 

 
REASON: In the interests of reducing the carbon footprint of the development. 
 
Informative 
The development involves work to provide a new footway across the site frontage on 
land which is existing public highway.  A S278 legal agreement is necessary with the 
Highway Authority to facilitate this work.  
 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer 
where they are to be found. 
 
The development hereby approved could be subject to the Community 

Infrastructure Levy. Wiltshire Council has now adopted a Community Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL) charging schedule. CIL is a charge that local authorities can place on new 

development in their area.  The money generated through CIL will contribute to the 

funding of infrastructure to support growth.  

More information and the charging schedule for CIL can be found using the following 

link: 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfrastructurelevy.

htm 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 55

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfrastructurelevy.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfrastructurelevy.htm


 
 
 
  

  

 

Page 56



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Planning Appeals and Updates
	7a APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/00560 - 27 The Oakbournes, Bishopdown
	PL.2022.00560 - location plan
	PL.2022.00560 - aeriel plan

	7b APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/01048 - Land Adjacent to 2 Old Sarum Cottages, Portway, Old Sarum, SP4 6BY
	PL.2022.01048 - Location Plan
	PL.2022.01048 - Aerial Plan


